
The Corrigendum/Addendum/Clarification No. 4 to Pre-Bid Queries raised by prospective bidders in response to RFP No. F. No 15/04/2023-ISA dated 12.04.2023.  The following  

Corrigendum/Addendum/Clarification in response to queries raised by prospective bidders shall form an integral part of the bid document and it may amount to an amendment of relevant Para/clause of the 

bid document. Wherever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over the relevant Para/clause of the RFP/ bid document.  

  

Particular No.  Description Provided  Questions  ISA reply  

Annex - Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 23 – Scope of  

Work  

The open portal will be a user-friendly interactive 

dashboard with attractive visualizations like maps, 

charts, icons and query-based functionalities, that 

will be hosted on ISA website.  

1. What are the total number of 

Dashboards in scope?  

2. What are the numbers of KPIs / Charts 

per dashboard – High Level approximate 

estimation would help  

One dashboard  

  
It is difficult to estimate the no. of KPIs or 

charts. See ISA’s Ease of Doing Solar 2022 

publication (on our website) which gives a 

good understanding of the KPIs that we are 

interested in. The agency is expected to further 

refine or recommend more KPIs after 

consultations with various stakeholders (as 

mentioned under the head ‘Planning’ in the 

Scope of Work section of the Terms of 

Reference).  

Annex- Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 23 – Scope of  

Work  

i. Planning:  
  

undertake detailed analysis of solar data and 
publications of ISA and other external sources to 
shortlist key data points that should be a part of the 
solar portal.  

  

ii. Design & Development:  

  

Ability to aggregate, analyse and visualise 

data from multiple sources  

3. Would you be able to throw some light 
on number of Data Sources to be connected 
such as SQL/SAP/Excels, etc. to load data in 
the data portal?  

  

4. Is the data expected to be sourced 

from internal and external sources only one 

time or on recurring basis? If recurring, can 

we expect web APIs from sources to be able to 

fetch the data repeatedly into our database? 

Ifnot, what are the alternate options that we 

can expect for loading the data?  

See above  
  
  
   

Both internal and external sources. Yes, web API to 

source data repeatedly – however, agency should 

ensure that the data is available in public domain or 

we have some agreement with the source 

organization that we can use their data.  

  



Annex- Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 23 – Scope of  

Work – (i) – 

Planning – Clause 

e.  

Review ISA’s IT infrastructure including website to 
gauge the portal’s requirements such as server 

space, front- and back-end software, licenses and 

any other systems  
required to develop, launch, maintain and update the 

portal;  

5. Our understanding is that ISA will procure any 
licenses for software  
Dashboard tools like BI - Power BI or Tableau, 

etc., front & back-end tool like .Net MVC, etc., 

DB tool like MS SQL Server, etc. Please advise 

or alternately suggest if vendor is supposed to 

consider open-source tools for portal and / or 

dashboards.  

Details are mentioned in the Terms of reference. 

Agency will have to work with ISA’s team to 

procure relevant licenses  

Annex- Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 23 – Scope of  

Work  

 i.  Planning:  

  

c) liaise with relevant organisations to source and 

integrate data into the portal  

6. How is data currently being collected 

from all the countries? What is the 

mechanism?  

See Terms of Reference – Ease of Doing 
Solar Report is the basis for collecting 
information currently – the latest report  
(2022) is available on our website  

Annex- Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 23 – Scope of  

Work  

 i.  Planning:  

  

a) hold inception meetings with a range of ISA 

stakeholders and staff to understand their data 

requirements;  

7. We understand that ISA is collecting data 

from all 107 countries. Does each of the 107 

countries have nominated Nodal Officer for 

this purpose?  

Yes, we work with a National Focal Point in each 

country who coordinate all ISA work. They are not 

exclusively nominated for this purpose.  

Annex- Terms of  

Reference – Page  

No. 24 – Scope of  

Work  

All portal features should be available in ISA’s 

official languages – English, French and Spanish  

We understand that the use of “google 

translator” or any other similar tool 

would suffice for the implementation of 

this feature. Please confirm.  

Yes  



-  General  8. What is the current institutional 

structure? Please provide details of 

existing institutional structure.  

www.isolaralliance.org  

  

RFP cl. 7: 

qualification – 

Page 27  

Ability to handle information in English, French, 
and Spanish.  
  

We understand that a person with a 

qualification in French/Spanish language 

shall suffice here. Please confirm.  

Yes  

  
  
  
A pre-bid meeting will be held at 10.30 AM on 22.05.2023 in virtual mode. You may join to follow the link given below:  
    
  

Click here to join 

  
  
For any clarification, you may contact procurement@isolaralliance.org  

http://www.isolaralliance.org/
http://www.isolaralliance.org/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTI3NjY3ZDUtMWM0Yi00YmJlLWIxZGYtODVmMWI2MzhiNDFh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2269effc0f-57ea-42eb-b830-59baa02bbae1%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22af47bc8e-03da-4a5c-aa97-b88455606522%22%7d


 


